- ~THE PARISH OF KILFERGUS. 147

SITUATION. This Parish is situated in the western extremity
of the Barony of Shanid and is bournded on the north by the River
Shannon, on the east by the Parishes of Loughel and Kilmoylan and
Nantenan, and on the west by the County of Kerry.

NAME. The name of this Parish is in Irish Cill Fearghasa
(pronounced Kill~Parreesa) which signifies the Church of Saint
Fergus, but there is no menument or recollection of such a Saint
at present in the Parish.

The o0ld Church of this Parish was forty two fest in length by
twenty two in breadth; its west gable and north wall are des%royed
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dewn to the foundations, but the south wall and east gable are

in good preservation. The window on the east gable forms a flat

archn constructed of thin rlags on the inside, and measures six

feet ten inches in heigh®t and four feet in width. On tne outside

it is rectangular at top and covered with a small lintel, and
measures in height four feet ten inches and in width seven inches

at top and eight inches at bottom. It is placed six feet from

the present level of the ground on the outside and zonstructed

‘thus: (No drawing in Manuscript). 148

The two lower stones on each side of this window cn *the out-
side are of a brownish hue and chiselled; the others are greenish
and hammered. The lower ones would appear to be by far older.

At the distance of two feet from the east gable there is a
rectangular window on the south wall, measuring on the inside
four feet six inches in height and three feet in width and on
the outside three feet five inches in height and eight inches in
width. It is built of hammered stones. The docrway was on the
same wall at the distance of nine feet from the west gable, but
its top is totally destroyed, so that its height cannct be dster-
mined but three feet of the height of its sides remain from which
it appears that it was rudely constructed of unnammered stones,
and measured four feet six inches on the outside and four feet
ten inches on the inside.

This south wall is twelve feet high from the east gable to
the doorway, but thence to the west gable it is only three feet
high. It is three feet thiek and built of large and some remark-
2bly small stones, irregularly laid and cemented with lime and sand
mortar. There is a large grave yard attached to it now much used.

14¢

This Church is situated on high ground in the Townland of XKil-

fergus and about half a mile to the east of the Village of Glyun.

The famous old Castle of Glyun, called by the Irish Annalists
Cloch Gleanna and by O’'Sullivan Beare Vallirupes, is about two hun-
dred yards to the east of the Village of Glynn and a quarter of a
mile to the east of the Knight of Glynn’s house. It is situated
In a valley anciently called Gleann Corbraighs and is washed at
the south west corner by the River of Glynn, now swollen to a con-
siderable height by floods from the mountains. The annexed view
of this Castle as it stood when stormed by Sir George on the 7th
of July 1600 will convey a pretty good idea of its form and extent.
It is described in the Pacata Hibernia as one hundred and two feet
in length and ninety two in breadtn. Only its tower now remains,
measuring on the inside twenty one feet eight inches in length and
nineteen feet in kreadth and about forty five feet in height, but
the people assert that it was thirty feet higher. The walls are
eight feet thick and exhibit windows for four stories. Two of
the floors were arched, but these are now broken. It has no cut
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stone and none of its windows are perfect. It is built of thin 181
flag stones cemented with lime and sand mortar.

The River Shannon is about three hundred yards to the north
of this Castle and spring tides flow up to its very walls.

Sir George Carew's description of the storming znd taking of
this Castle in 1800 is curious and should be here inserted., I in-
sert all the references tco this Castle to be found in the Annals of
the Four Masters as translated by me from the autograph original.

The antiquities of this Parish were examined
by Mr. A. Curry.
J. O'Donovan.

Cloch @leanna (Cloich-Ghleanns, Baile Fil for Chruach na Sionna). 152
' — Annals 4 Masters.

"A.D. 1600. In the beginning of July the President and the
Earl of Thomond set out from Limerick with a fine body (muster)
of soldiers and marcned westwards along the northern side of the
Snannon through the County of Clare until they arrived at Baile
Meg~Colman in the Territory c¢? Bast Corca Baiscinn; from this
they ferried themselves across the Shannon to Cloch-Gleanna (the
-Loek of Glynn) a Castle on the southern bank of the Shannon.
The Castle* at which this army then (thus) arrived was one of 1563
the Castles of the Knight of Glynng it is situated in Gleaun-Cor-
braighe from which it received the name of Cloch-Gleanna+ and the
Knight the appellation of Ridire an Ghleanna, or the Knight of
the Valley. Heavy ordnance was sent in ships from Limeriek to
meet the Harl and the President there., They laid siege to it
(the Castle) for two days and made a breach in it with the heavy
ordnance. They then rushed into it from every side and slew a 154
score or two of ncbles and plebeians of tne Knight's people who
were guarding the Castle, together with some women and children.
Bome of the President’s men were also slain by the warders, and
it would not have been easy to take the Castle were it not that
the Barl of Desmond's people had been previously dispersed." 8ee
Gleann Corbraighe at this year,

* This Castle of @Glynn was ninety two feet in breadth and
one hundred and two in length. A plan of it as then besieged is
given in the Pacata Hibernia, page 112.

+ Cloch-@leanna, i.e., the Stone or Stone Edifice of the
Velley. ‘“The ancient Irish called a stone building fregquently
by the name of c¢loch, a stone.
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@Gleann-Corbraighe*. 1656

"A. D, 1562, The Barl of Thomond went upon a cuairt Ceannais
fedhna (visitation of a Chief leader) into the Territory of O’Conor
and into Gleann-Corbraighe, on which occasion he killed with one
shot out of Glynn Castle, the son of O’'Loughlin, viz., Melaghlin,
the son of Owney, who was son of Melaghlin, who was son of Rory,
who was son of Ana Bacach, The same Earl made a similar excursion
into Caenraighe (Kenry) about the same time and slew on that oec-
asion Dowell, the son of Gilduff, who was son of Concr Mac Sweeny."

"A.D. 1598, In the beginning of autumn in this year 0'Neill 156
sent letters to DLeinster ordering EBdmond Burke, Owny O'More and
Capt. Tyrrell to place proper leaders over those who were leagued
with them and to proceed themselves to make new conguests and to
cause the opposing inhabitants of Territories, bty solicitation or
terror, to join them. He particularly requested them to go to Mun-
ster to solicit the sons of Thomas Roe, who was son of James, who
was son of John, who was son of the Barl «xx . Among those who
joined them were O’Dwyre of Kilnamanagh «#+ the son of Mac Brian
O’gCuanach sxx« the Rysns xx« and the descendants of Brian Oge
of Duharra, Whnen these Chiefs had joined O’Neill’s people and 187
all the neighbouring territories had been leagued with them they
marched with all their forces at the instance of the sons of Thomas
Roe, the son of the Barl (of Desmond) into the Country of the Fitz=
geralds. They first went to the Co. of Limerick. The President,
Sir Thomas Norris, was at this time at Kilmallock, and when he un-
derstood that he was not capable of engaging (coping) with them he
avoided meeting them and went to Cork. The Irish then proceeded
westwards across the River Mang to Conillo and the borders of
S81iabh Luachra and @Gleann-Corbraighe." (See Limerick at this year
page 473 for the conclusion of this article).

"A.D. 1800. In the beginning of July the President and the 158
Barl of Thomond set out from Limerick with a fine body (muster)
of soldiers and marched westwards along the northern side of the
Shannon through the Co, of Clare until they arrived at Baile Meg
Colman {now Ballymacolman) in the Territory of Bast Corca Baiscinnj
from this they ferried themselves across the Shannon to Cloch
Gleanns (the Rock of Glynn) a Castle on the southern bank of the
Shannon. The Castle at which this army thus arrived was one of
the Castles of the Enight of Glynn; it is situated in Gleann-Cor-
braighe from which it received the name of Cloch Gleanna and the 159

* O’y h-aginmnigheadh Ridire an Ghleanna, 1.e., a quo Eques
vallis nominatis est.

Glencorbery is the valley from which the EKnight of Glynn
takes his name. It lies near the Shannon in the Barony of Shanid
and Co. of Limerick,
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Knight the aprellation of Ridire an Ghleanns, or the Knight of
the Valley. Heavy ordnance was sent in ships from Limerick to
meet the Farl and the President here. They laid seige to it (the
Castle) for two days and made a breach in it with the heavy ord-
nance. They then rushed into it from every side and slew a score
or two of gentlemen or plebeians of the Knight’s people who were
guarding the Castle, together with some women and children.

In 0ld English records this place is always c=lled Glyneorbry.
This valley is situated in the Barony of Shanid on the Shannon.
The Village of Glynn and Glynn-House, the seat of John Francis Fitz-
gerald, the precgent Knight of Glynn, are situate in this Valley.
Vide Betham's Antiquarisn Researches, Vol.l, pages 232, 233.



